ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 25, 2011
1:31 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair

Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan

Senat or John Coghi |

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MCuire
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 11

"An Act relating to the comm ssion of a crinme when the defendant
directed the conduct constituting the crine at the victim based
on the victims race, sex, color, creed, physical or nental
disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, ancestry, or
national origin."

- MOVED SB 11 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 17
"An Act classifying certain synthetic cannabinoids as schedul e
1A controll ed substances; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 39

"An Act ratifying an interstate conpact to elect the President
and Vice-President of the United States by national popular
vote; and maeking related changes to statutes applicable to the
selection by voters of electors for candidates for President and
Vice- President of the United States and to the duties of those
el ectors.™

- MOVED SB 39 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 11
SHORT TI TLE: HATE CRI MES

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 25, 2011



SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/ 19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 11

01/19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 11 (S) JUD, FIN

02/ 16/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 16/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 16/ 11 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 25/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 17
SHORT TI TLE: SYNTHETI C CANNABI NO DS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MEYER

01/19/11
01/ 19/ 11
01/19/ 11
02/ 09/ 11
02/ 09/ 11
02/ 09/ 11
02/ 11/ 11
02/ 11/ 11
02/ 11/ 11
02/ 21/ 11
02/ 21/ 11
02/ 21/ 11
02/ 25/ 11

BILL: SB 39

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HSS, JUD

HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved SB 17 Qut of Conmmttee

M NUTE( HSS)

HSS RPT 5DP

DP: DAVIS, ELLIS, MEYER, EGAN, DYSON
FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

SHORT TITLE: U. S. PRESI DENTI AL ELECTI ON COMPACT

SPONSOR( s) :

01/19/ 11
01/19/ 11
01/ 19/ 11
02/ 01/ 11
02/ 01/ 11
02/ 01/ 11
02/ 10/ 11
02/ 10/ 11
02/ 10/ 11
02/ 11/ 11
02/ 11/ 11
02/ 11/ 11
02/ 16/ 11
02/ 16/ 11
02/ 16/ 11

SENATE JUD COW TTEE

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) FRENCH

PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 14/ 11

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
STA, JUD, FIN

STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved SB 39 Qut of Conmmttee

M NUTE( STA)

STA RPT 1DNP 3NR

DNP: G ESSEL

NR: W ELECHOWBKI , PASKVAN, NEYER
JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

- 2- February 25, 2011



02/ 23/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

02/ 23/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d
02/ 23/ 11 (S) M NUTE( JUD)
02/ 25/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

CHRI STI NE MARASEGAN, Staff to Senator Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned how the commttee substitute for
SB 17 differs fromthe original bill.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Crimnal Division

Depart ment of Law

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information on the effective date
for SB 17.

JENNI FER MESSI CK, Traffic Safety Resource Prosecutor

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported the original version of SB 17.

JERRY LUCKHAUPT, Assistant Revisor of Statutes
Legi sl ative Legal Services

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Drafting attorney for SB 17.

ORI N DYM Forensic Laboratory Manager

Statew de Crine Laboratory

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded information about drug testing as
it related to SB 17.

ZACHORY ALEXANDER PEASE, representing hinsel f
Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 17.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:31: 30 PM

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:31 p.m Senators Paskvan,

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 25, 2011



W el echowski, and French were present at the call to order.
Senator Coghill arrived soon thereafter.

SB_17- SYNTHETI C CANNABI NO DS

1: 31: 47 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 17 and asked for
a notion to adopt the work draft commttee substitute (CS).

SENATOR W ELECHOMNSKI noved to adopt the work draft conmittee
substitute to SB 17, |labeled 27-LS0121\D, as the working
docunment. There being no objection, version D was before the
conmittee.

1:32:24 PM

CHRI STINE MARASEGAN, staff to Senator Meyer, said SB 17
classifies synthetic cannabinoids and the CS noves these
substances from schedule IIA which is in AS 11.71.150, to
schedule IIl'A, which is in AS 11.71.260. She noted the letters
of support including the Alaska Peace Oficers Association,
Wnen Police Al aska, Alaska Association of Chiefs of Police,
Municipality of Anchorage, Al aska Mental Health Board, Al aska
Advi sory Board on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse, and Fairbanks
Pol i ce.

CHAI R FRENCH asked what general affect the proposed change in
cl assification woul d have on possessi on of cannabi noi ds.

1:33: 06 PM
SENATOR COCGHI LL joined the commttee.

M5. MARASEGAN expl ained that possession of cannabinoids under
schedule IIA would be a class C felony although there would
probably be room for presunptive sentencing. Possession of a
schedule [IIIA controlled substance, which the <current CS
proposes, would be a class A msdeneanor. That penalty is a
maxi mum one year in prison and a $10, 000 fi ne.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked when this product would have to be taken
off the retail shelf after the bill is inplenented.

CHAIR FRENCH offered an opinion and asked M. Carpeneti for a
definitive answer.

SENATOR COGHI LL expressed concern about giving retailers
sufficient notice to change their behavior.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 25, 2011



1:36:45 PM

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General, Crimnal D vision,
Departnent of Law (DOL), said the current CS has an inmmedi ate
effective date, which would be the day after the governor signs
the bill.

SENATOR COGHI LL expressed concern about the public policy of
making retailers liable the nonent the bill is signed into | aw.

1: 37: 31 PM
JENNI FER MESSI CK, Traffic Safety Resour ce Pr osecut or
Municipality of Anchorage (MJA), stated that the MOA supports

classifying synthetic cannabinoids as schedule IIA drugs for
five reasons. 1) Schedule I1A has cyclic drugs and Spice is a
cyclic. Its effects are simlar to PCP and LSD and users

oftentimes experience different synptons. She provided exanples
of erratic to psychotic behavior and two exanples that resulted
in death. This is conpared to marijuana and hash, which affects
users in very simlar and predictable ways. "Cenerally people
are tired, lazy, hungry, and maybe euphoric or relaxed," she
stated. 2) The U. S. Poison Control Center says that the synptons
of Spice are nore simlar to nethanphetam ne and PCPs than to
mari j uana.

1:43: 51 PM
At ease due to teleconference difficulties.

1:45:59 PM
CHAI R FRENCH reconvened the neeting and called for conmttee
guesti ons.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if her departnent had any peer-review
studi es that address synthetic cannabi noi ds.

M5. MESSICK said no because there have been no scientific
studies on human subjects. In the md '90s pharnmaceutical
conpani es were in conpetition to develop a synthetic cannabinoid
that had just the nedicinally desirable qualities of nmarijuana.
The conmpounds that are commonly found in K2 and Spice were
di scarded as wunsuitable for human testing because of the way
they affected rats and pigeons during testing. The scientists
nonet hel ess published their results and "basenent scientists”
began using these discarded forrmulas. Wile these conpounds are
marketed as incense, they are really only intended to get the
user hi gh.

1:48: 41 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 25, 2011



SENATOR PASKVAN asked her to cite her sources.

M5. MESSI CK said John W Huffrman, the researcher who devel oped
nost of these conmpounds, has been quoted in a nunber of
published articles warning potential users. He has stated that
t hese conmpounds were never intended for human consunption and
that using themis tantamount to playing Russian roulette

She infornmed the commttee that the Minicipality of Anchorage
became aware of these conmpounds in April 2010 and in retrospect
they were seeing evidence of drivers that were probably inpaired
by these conmpounds for 18 nonths prior to that. Blood tests from
Spice inpaired drivers detect nothing. Since that tine the
muni ci pality has amassed an extensive depth of know edge on
t hese conmpounds, and she has traveled to other states to conduct
training on these conpounds for |aw enforcenent, the military,
and counter-drug intelligence officials.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if she had source docunents from Dr.
Huf fman that tell where these synthetic cannabinoids cane from
and that they were not intended for human consunpti on.

M5. MESSICK replied she could provide that infornmation.

CHAIR FRENCH noted that testinony |ast week indicated that the
Anchorage nmunicipal assenbly decided to nake possession of K2
essentially a traffic ticket. He asked if K2 is stil
commercially available in Anchorage.

M5. MESSI CK answered yes, the conpounds found in both Spice and
K2 are still available on the black market and in tobacco and
head shops. The MOA enacted the ordinance because it doesn't
have the authority to nake possession a felony. They took this
step because high school students were using these conpounds and
experiencing alarmng reactions. She opined that one thing that
makes this drug so dangerous is that it's marketed to | ook like
marijuana. This nmakes it attractive and it appears to be safe
Furthernore, the governnent hasn't crimnalized possession and
use and that sends the nessage that it's not a big deal. If the
muni ci pality had had the authority to make it a felony, it would
have done so, she said.

1:56: 26 PM

CHAIR FRENCH asked her to clarify whether the penalty for
possession of K2 within the MOA is a m sdeneanor that can send a
person to jail for six nmonths or a traffic ticket that carries a
fine.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 25, 2011



M5. MESSICK replied it can be either. Two subsections of the
muni ci pal penal code address distributors and those are
mandatory m sdeneanor violations. Two subsequent subsections
address |low | evel possession and the officer has the option of
citing a msdenmeanor or using the civil fine. She opined that
the city took this route because it doesn't have the authority
to prosecute juveniles for msdeneanor offenses that aren't
traffic oriented.

CHAIR FRENCH said he has difficulty believing that head shops
still sell K2 if it's a m sdeneanor in the nunicipal code.

V. VESSI CK replied t he manuf act urers anti ci pat ed
crimnalization and they've substituted anal og conpounds; the
affect is the same but the chemcal structure is slightly
different.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if this is backed up by research or
supposi tion.

M5. MESSICK replied law enforcement doesn't have a test for
t hese substances but analog conpounds are advertized on the
I nternet so the police know they' re bei ng used.

1:59:56 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if Anchorage is seeing problenms with
ot her drugs |ike heroin, neth, crack or cocaine.

M5. MESSICK said yes; heroin is popular in Anchorage and
met hanphetam ne is in evidence.

SENATOR W ELECHOMNSKI  asked why she thinks that outlaw ng
synthetic cannabinoids wll solve the problem when drugs that
are already illegal continue to be a problem

M5. MESSICK replied the legislation would provide a franmework
for future action and without it, |aw enforcenment is helpless.
Furthernore, a schedule Il classification would send the clear
nessage that these substances are dangerous. This is how the
government protects citizens, she said.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how many people are in jail in
Anchorage for drug-rel ated of f enses.

MS. MESSI CK said she had no idea.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 25, 2011



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how many people have been found to
have used synthetic cannabi noi ds.

M5. MESSICK estimated that since April 2010 there have been
several hundred bad incidents reported by APD, the fire
departnent, and school officials. The nbst common users of this
very dangerous drug are age 14-17.

2:05:21 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the police could get a search
warrant to search a house if they pull soneone over and have
reason to believe that they' re under the influence of synthetic
cannabi noi ds.

M5. MESSICK replied that wouldn't be appropriate, but if an
of ficer reasonably believes that a person is inpaired, he or she
could get a search warrant for the person's blood. One lab in
the U S. can detect synthetic cannabinoids in blood and severa

others can detect it in wurine. She offered to provide
information showing that this drug is a problem in all 50
st ates.

2: 08: 06 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if it would be a good starting point to
crimnalize the manufacture and distribution. This would target
the top of the pyramid rather than the bottom

M5. MESSICK said yes, but kids would still have ready access
over the Internet.

CHAIR FRENCH said at this point he's interested in hearing from
a chem st/lawer who can tell him how broad he can craft the
| anguage to capture as many substances as possible and still
give fair warning to the people who are mnufacturing and
distributing. At the sane tinme he wants to work on the issues
that make it possible for the big fish to nove on while the dunb
kid who has a little in his pocket goes to jail or has his
future ruined.

SENATOR PASKVAN noted that she used the term "future action" and
asked if she anticipates the need for future | egislative action.

M5. MESSI CK addressed Senator French's coments and enphasized
that possession should be illegal but she would agree that
crafting a law that is sufficiently broad to include new anal ogs
is problematic.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 25, 2011



2:13: 27 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN said if she didn't intend that "future action”
meant future legislative action then he would wthdraw the
guesti on.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI stated support for taking a nore
conprehensive look at this issue and suggested that targeting
t he manufacturers was better policy than thromng teens in jai
for possessing this substance.

2:15:49 PM

CHAIR FRENCH asked the drafter to comment on how broadly the
definition could be cast to warn people that what they're doing
is illegal and enconpass future nutations, w thout running afoul
of the constitution.

2:16: 22 PM

JERRY LUCKHAUPT, Assistant Revisor of Statutes, Legislative
Legal Services, Legislative Affairs Agency, said he attenpted to
draft the bill as broadly as he thought possible. The bill lists
the substances that other states have mnmde illegal and it
i ncl udes | anguage about salts, isonmers, and salts of isonmers to
cover the normal ways to nmke an analog. He noted that states
that have tried to address anal ogs describing them as "simlar"
conpounds have been largely unsuccessful because that doesn't
give proper notice. The federal government passed the Federal
Anal og Act about 30 years ago, but after a federal court in
Colorado found it unconstitutional, there were no further
prosecutions. At nost, it's used as a negotiation point on
anot her matter.

2:20: 14 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked if the federal governnent had taken action on
t he substances addressed in the bill.

MR. LUCKHAUPT replied the federal governnment is in the process
of listing five of the substances and HU-210 is already listed
under federal law. Five other substances will be listed after
the requisite studies are finished.

2:21:01 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Dymif the state crine |lab could test for
t hese substances if they were nade illegal.

ORIN DYM Forensic Laboratory Manager , Statewide Crine
Laboratory, Departnment of Public Safety (DPS), stated that the
| ab woul d need to purchase standards to nmake the conparison, but

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- February 25, 2011



the instrunentation and expertise is on hand so they could
provi de the service in the near future.

CHAIR FRENCH surm sed that the Anchorage Police Departnment had
not asked for testing based on the nunicipal ordinance.

MR. DYM responded that they inforned the APD that the |lab would
prepare to conduct the tests if this were to becone state | aw.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked what the additional costs woul d be.

MR. DYM replied the chem cals would cost about $10,500 and they
are asking for an additional position to do the testing.

2:23: 53 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked for clarification on the nunicipa
and federal |aws.

MR. LUCKHAUPT expl ained that there is a federal law in place for
at least one of these substances and hopefully five others wll
be listed in the next few nonths.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if a 17-year-old who was in
possession could theoretically be prosecuted under the rmuni ci pal
law, the state law, and the federal |aw

MR.  LUCKHAUPT opined that a person could receive a civil
citation under nunicipal |law and be prosecuted under both state
and federal |aws.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI commented that a new prison will be needed
every five or ten years if laws |like this are passed.

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Luckhaupt to reiterate whether or not
this language is broad enough to capture new conpounds, but
narrow enough to be constitutional.

MR. LUCKHAUPT opined that the |anguage is sufficiently broad
enough w thout becoming unconstitutional. He infornmed the
committee that, in a simlar circunstance, it didn't work in the
'80s when efforts were nmade to crimnalize ecstasy and drugs
that were simlar, because the Jlaws didn't provide the
constitutionally required notice. Unfortunately, when a new
designer drug is created, it has to be addressed individually
and added to the schedul es.

2:27: 13 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 25, 2011



CHAI R FRENCH said he's disheartened so far by the experience in
the nunicipality because his assunption was that if it was
illegal it would disappear from the retail shelves and people
woul d stop seeking it out.

MR.  LUCKHAUPT said once the federal governnent nekes these
substances illegal, inportation will slow

2:29:11 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL said the inmediate effective date caught his
attention and he questions whether the |egislative hearings are
sufficient notice.

MR. LUCKHAUPT opi ned that the head shops wll be aware of what's
occurring between the tinme this passes and the governor signs it
into law. He added that he doubts there would be a problem wth
a prosecution occurring under that circunstance.

SENATOR COGHI LL said his other point is that it would probably
be easier to prosecute sellers than buyers.

MR. LUCKHAUPT said that while testing the end-user is the issue
right now, he's sure that enployers are looking for ways to
include this in a wurinalysis. Testinony in other commttees
i ndi cates that several conpanies already do this.

2:33: 01 PM

ZACHORY ALEXANDER PEASE, representing hinself, stated that in
his opinion this is the nost volatile, disgusting drug since the
i ntroduction of Oxycontin. He was tricked into snoking it and
the experience was not good. "As a young person | think that we
need to get this off the streets as soon as possible,” he said.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if any commttee nenber needed additional
information in order to nake a deci sion about the bill.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he'd like DOL to supply information
about the nunber of people in jail in A aska for possession of
drugs and what this costs.

CHAIR FRENCH announced he would hold SB 17 awaiting the
i nformation.

SB 11- HATE CRI MES

2:35:15 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 25, 2011



CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 11. He noted that
public testinony was taken during the last hearing and it would
remai n cl osed.

2:35:51 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL noved Anmendnent 27-LSO0087\A. 2. He stated that it
effectively renoves Section 1 fromthe bill.

AMENDMENT
27-LS0087\ A. 2

OFFERED | N THE SENATE BY SENATOR COGHI LL
TG SB 11

Page 1, line 5, through page 2, line 7:
Delete all material .

Page 2, line 8:
Del ete "Sec. 2"
| nsert "Section 1"

2:36: 23 PM
CHAI R FRENCH obj ect ed.

SENATOR COGHI LL said he imagines that the bill would nove al ong
but he wanted to register his concern about adding the primary
crime notivation by prejudice, bias, or hatred to what 1is
already a primary crinme. He expressed the view that this nore
appropriately belongs in the aggravator section.

CHAI R FRENCH mai nt ai ned hi s objection.

2:37:51 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN said he doesn't believe that it's a crine added
to a crime; it's the same as the various treatnents for the
different categories or classifications of hom cide.

SENATOR COGHILL said he understands that notivation has
different levels, but bias, hatred, and prejudice fall wupon
knowi ngly and that has a whole different sidebar discussion as
to the culpable nental state. It takes the whole Title 11 into
account on the issue. "I don't know that |I'm ready to go down
that road yet," he stated.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 25, 2011



CHAIR FRENCH said his view is that the anmendnment renoves the
significant portion of half the bill. He cited Article 1,
Section 3, of the Alaska Constitution and observed that it
sounds like a command to the legislature to pass this very bill.

No person is to be denied the enjoynent of any civi
or political right because of race, color, creed, sex,
or national origin. The legislature shall inplenent
this section.

Clearly, the constitution holds these specific rights very high,
he stated.

Point two is that this bill is absolutely not directed against
speech. As |long as there's a First Anendnent, hate crines
legislation will never be used agai nst people even when they say

things that others find very offensive. The best exanple of this
is the Wst Borough Baptist Church, which frequently holds
denonstrations at funerals of soldiers. Despite the fact that
many people find those denonstrations deeply offensive, they
neverthel ess go on under the protection of the First Anmendnent.

No preacher in this nation will ever be charged with a hate
crime for anything he or she says from a pulpit based on the
passage of this bill, Senator French stat ed.

2:42: 27 PM

CHAIR FRENCH pointed out that the Roman persecution of
Christians is the paradigmatic hate crine; other exanples of
hate crimes include the OQtonan genocide of the Arnenians and
the various Nazi pogronms. As a fornmer prosecutor he knows that
it's very difficult to prove what's in sonmeone's mnd and he
realizes that the wvast mjority of these crines wll Dbe
prosecuted as sinple assaults, not as hate crinmes. This bill
puts every person in a special class so that if they are
attacked because of what they represent, it's nore offensive
than sinply being attacked. It becanme a federal offense to
coormit a hate crime in 1994 and several vyears ago that
| egislation was amended to include gender and gender identity.
It's been wused sparingly, however, because these crines are
difficult to prosecute.

2:43: 55 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL said his amendnent was intended to focus on the
crinme issue. The Alaska Constitution says the legislature has a
duty to inplenment law, but it also has a duty to uphold the
constitution. He said he continues to believe that bias and
hatred can be very subjective so these prosecutions wll becone

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- February 25, 2011



exceedingly difficult and probably wll fall out to the
aggravator. That's where they belong. Every person should have
equal protection under the law regardless of bias, but under
this bill there will be a hunt for a new crine of bias or
prejudice every tine there's an assault. Watever the nental
cul pable state or notivation, this adds a new elenent to every
crinme already in Title 11. This creates an unwi se dynamc in the
|l aw, regardless of the federal |law The aggravator is the best
route because you get to determne if there was sonething in a
particular crime that aggravated it so egregiously that
sentenci ng becones the issue. The punishnent for the crine then
gets to look at either a mtigater or an aggravator.

SENATOR COGHI LL said he understands the debate and agrees wth
some of it, but this double-tine precedent is sonething he needs
to understand further or at least he is not willing to agree to
it at this point.

2:47: 19 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked the clerk to call the roll on the notion to
adopt anmendnent 27-LS0087\A. 2.

A roll call vote was taken. Senator Coghill voted in favor of
Amendnent 1 and Senators W el echowski, Paskvan, and French voted
against it. Therefore, Amendment 1 failed by a vote of 1-3.

2:47:52 PM
SENATOR W ELECHONSKI noved to report SB 11 from conmttee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and attached fiscal note(s).

2:48: 11 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL objected. He stated that he believes in equality
and the hate crinmes discussion adds specialties to that, which
is unwse. At this point he particularly objects to it as a
primry crine.

2:48: 33 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said that when crinmes are directed at a person
because of their status it is nmore wong than the underlying,
sonetines horrific event. Hate crimes in the U S. include
lynching of African Anericans; cross burnings to drive Black
famlies from predomnately Wite neighborhoods; assaults on
White people traveling in predomnately Black neighborhoods;
assaults on |Ilesbhian, gay, bisexual, and transgender people;
painting of swastikas on Jewi sh synagogues; and xenophobic
responses to a variety of mnority ethnic groups.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 25, 2011



Painting a swastika on a Jew sh synagogue could be seen as
sinple crimnal mschief or it could be seen as representing
sonething far nore powerful and evil and worthy of condemnation

and punishment. In the cases that a person's intent can be
measured and if that intent is nore evil or wong than the
underlying crinme, it wll be punished nore severely, Senator

French st at ed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said his eyes were opened on this issue
when he lived in Japan. He was regularly stopped by the police
and asked for identification, he was regularly turned away from
restaurants, and he was prohibited from going to certain public
pl aces, all because he didn't | ook Japanese. He said he's glad
to live in a country and state that doesn't tolerate that.
Passing this legislation says this society doesn't tolerate
di scri m nation against people for the way they |ook or act or
where they cone from

SENATOR PASKVAN said that both the U S. and Al aska are civilly
di verse societies and the constitution says that no segnent of
t hese societies should be intimdated by the conduct of others.

2:51: 37 PM
SENATOR COGHILL said he agrees with the constitutional nandate
but he fears that a nore refined definition wll provide nore

tools for intimdation of others. He said he also agrees that
the things that are the nost egregious in U S history have been
dealt with very well, particularly in Alaska. He restated his
intention to vote against the bill.

2:53: 01 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked the clerk to call the roll on the notion to
move SB 11 fromcommtt ee.

A roll call vote was taken. Senators W el echowski, Paskvan, and
French voted in favor of noving SB 11 and Senator Coghill voted
against it. Therefore, SB 11 was reported out of the Senate
Judiciary Standing Conmittee by a vote of 3-1.

SB 39-U.S. PRESI DENTI AL ELECTI ON COVPACT

2:53:21 PM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 39. Public
testinmony was taken and closed at the previous hearing. Finding
no di scussion or amendnents, he asked the will of the commttee.

2:53: 32 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- February 25, 2011



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noved to report SB 39 from conmmittee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and attached fiscal note(s).

2:53:42 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL objected. He said the question is if this wll
be a country of states or a country of a general popul ation and
his option is to remain a country of states. He disagrees wth
conpacting out state responsibilities. He said he appreciated
the lively debate and he can understand how sonme people could
agree with this, but he isn't one of those.

2:54: 22 PM

CHAIR FRENCH responded that the founders envisioned state
| egi sl atures exercising the prerogative to think about better
ways of doing business. This is one of the few aspects of a
| egislature's work that is delegated directly from the U S.
Constitution. State legislators have the authority to better
shape how to award electors. He personally wants to see a system
t hat makes certain that the person sitting in the Wite House is
t he person who got the nobst votes because any other result is a
travesty. This is a step in that direction.

2:55: 27 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked the clerk to call the roll on the notion to
move SB 39 fromcommttee.

A roll call vote was taken. Senators W el echowski, Paskvan, and
French voted in favor of noving SB 39 and Senator Coghill voted
against it. Therefore, SB 39 was reported out of the Senate
Judiciary Standing Conmittee by a vote of 3-1.

2:55: 57 PM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 2:55 p. m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- February 25, 2011



